Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees

Chairman Vice Chairman Secretary/Treasurer Trustee Trustee
Robert Stulac Robert Garcia Russ Siegman Vicky Lufrano Dale Dunham

August 21, 2024
Regular Board Meeting
6:00 P.M.

District Board Room
3394 James Lee Park Road
Carson City, NV
89705

(775) 267-2805

MISSIONSTATEMENT
The Mission of the District is to provide, within its Charter, those public facilities and services which
maintain and improve the quality of life of its resident families and to maintain and operate those
facilities and services at the highest quality and in the most cost-effective manner possible, with the
intent to continue to do so for a growing population of residents.

It is the intent of the Board of Trustees to protect the dignity of citizens who wish to comment before the Board. It
is also the Board of Trustees’ wish to provide the citizens of the district with an environment that upholds the
highest professional standards.

In order to ensure that every citizen desiring to speak before the Board has the opportunity to express his/her
opinion, it is requested that the audience refrain from making comments, hand clapping or making any remarks or
gestures that may interrupt, interfere, or prevent the speaker from commenting on any present or future project.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S, Department of Agriculture policy, IHGID is prohibited from discriminating on
the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To
file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, §.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.

Communication for Hearing Impaired: Nevada Relay Service is available by calling 711. The TTY or HCO
(hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868, Voice only is 800-326-6888, VCO (voice carry over) is
800-326-4013.

Notice to Persons with Disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or
accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the District Office in writing at 3394 James Lee Park Road,
Carson City, NV 89703, or by calling 267-2805 at least 24 hours in advance.

Following is the Agenda, which is also posted on [HGID's website at: www.indianhillsnevada.com




AGENDA

6:00 P.M. — Regular Meeting

1. Call to Order - Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Interest Comment (No Action)

The public may comment on any subject that is pertinent to JHGID. The public may comment on any itemn that is on
this agenda at the time it is discussed. Therefore, the public is encouraged and permitted to make comments on any
non-agenda items during the public interest comment period. Comments may be limited by the discretion of the
Chair and may not exceed three (3) minutes. Please note that the Board is prohibited by law from deliberating or
taking action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on this agenda.

4, Approval of Agenda-Chairman
Items on this agenda may be taken out of order. Two or more agenda items may be combined

for consideration. Any item appearing on this agenda may be removed, or its discussion
delayed at any time.

e Motion
e Vote
5. Reports to the Board:
a. General Manager Report
1. Administrative
2, Water
3. Wastewater
b. District Accountant Report
C. Engineer Report

d. Attorney Report

¢ Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e (Close Public Comment

6. Discussion and possible action to approve a proposal from Lumos and Associates in the
amount of $65,500 for roadway inspection and implementation of street saver pavement
management system for the whole district.

(General Manager, Chris Johnson/ District Engineer, Collin Sturge)

e Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e (lose Public Comment



10.

1.

12.

Discussion and possible action to approve a proposal Lumos and Associates in the amount of
$37,500 for roadway inspection and implementation of street saver pavement management
system for half of the district, west of 395.

(General Manager, Chris Johnson/ District Engineer, Collin Sturge)

® Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e Close Public Comment

Discussion only regarding excess speeding residents are experiencing on Mica Drive, North
Sunridge Drive and South Sunridge Drive. (Resident, Sharon Buckley)

o Board of Trustees Discussion
¢ Open Public Comment
o Close Public Comment

Discussion and possible action regarding tennis court lockage.
(Resident, Koko Green)

e Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
o (Close Public Comment

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the June 26, 2024, Board
meeting.

e Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public
e (Close Public Comment

Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence

Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications received
by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the district. No
action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request such an item or topic
be placed on a future agenda.

Adjournment

This agenda is posted at www.indianhillsnevada.com, htips://notice.nv.gov and at the following locations:

District Main Office, 3394 James Lee Park Road

As of 8:30 AM., August 16,2024, by 3 Wﬂ



AGENDA ITEM 5a.

Reports to the Board:
a. General Manager Report
1. Administrative

2. Water
3. Wastewater



General Manager Report August 21, 2024

We had a pump fail in Lift Station 2. That is the lift station that services the entire district. The lift station
has 3 pumps in it, so it was not offline, but it cannot operate on 2 pumps indefinitely. The wastewater
team took the pump up to Reno for service. The pump is 16 years old, and repair for the pump was
going to cost $53,716. A new pump was quoted at $71,925. This is a piece of equipment that cannot stay
offline, so | opted to do an emergency purchase with it. | contacted the Chairman to inform him of the
situation and obtain his opinion on the pump. We agreed that a new replacement made more sense
than repairing an old pump. Pump 2 was rebuilt 8 years ago, and the Wastewater Supervisor is going to
have it serviced this year. Pump 1 is in similar condition to Pump 3 (the failed pump) so we will budget
to replace Pump 1 in the 2025/2026 fiscal budget. The cost of the emergency replacement has been
taken from the Wastewater Reserves which are currently around $1.1M.

We have had a small problem with the Tennis Courts. As you are all aware, we spent around $6,000 on
resurfacing the courts, and doing some other upgrades and maintenance on the tennis courts. We
received multiple complaints about kids and people riding skateboards, scooters, bicycles, and other
things on the tennis courts, so we implemented a plan to put a lock on the gates with the same
combination of the tennis courts in the surrounding areas. We gave tennis players the combination and
asked them to not share it with non-tennis players, and to lock up when they leave. Six times the lock
was left unlocked, and the locks have been stolen. We asked people repeatedly to lock the courts when
they leave, but they have not been locked and the locks have been stolen. We have put a key lock on the
gate now. The tennis courts get unlocked when we arrive in the morning, and locked again when we
teave in the evening. For the weekends we have stuck to our tennis court reservation policy, so residents
my reserve the courts and pick up the key from us. There is a $200 deposit per the policy, but it is
refundable when the key is returned. | have located a mechanical keypad lock that we are going mount
on the gate, with a spring closure. Once this lock arrives we will install it on the gate and we can go back
to a combination for tennis players. The spring mechanism will close and lock the gate on the tennis
courts automatically, so we will not need to rely on people to lock the gate when they are done. We will
also be redoing the signs in the Tennis Courts.

We went to see the Camera Trailer that we are buying from MGSD. It is in excellent condition! This will
be a very valuable tool for the district, allowing us to film and inspect our sewer lines.

We are beginning work on the North Tank. The bid opening will be on the 9'" of September, with the
hope of beginning work in October to refurbish that tank.

The Parks and Streets department will be going into the Stormwater Basins to do some maintenance in
the next month to prepare for winter.

The July Community Cleanup Day was a success. We disposed of 120 yards of garbage, 80 yards of green
waste, and 40 yards of metal.

The Parks and Streets department have picked up the new mower and dump trailer that we budgeted
into this year. The new mower has been a huge improvement to their available tools for taking care of
the parks.

I am currently researching the application process and requirements for the Nevada State Parks Land
and Water Conservation Fund grant. The application is due at the beginning of September, but ) am
trying to get in an application for some Pickelbal! Courts.



Administrative Report August 2024

The ACH program continues to be well received. Residents are thankful the district has
implemented this option for payments. We currently have 576, 28.514% of residents taking
advantage of automatic withdrawal. We continue to receive requests and new authorization
forms daily.

In June we sent out twenty-eight past-due bills resulting in four disconnections. Three accounts
paid in full, and service was restored. The other is vacant and up for sale.

In July we sent out twenty-one past-due bills resulting in two disconnections. Both accounts
paid in full, and service was restored.

We had nine new account sign ups in June and seven in July. These are homes that have
changed ownership.

The District’s Gazebo reservations are in full swing with four reservations for James Lee Park
Gazebo for July.

The District ‘s yard of the month winners for July were 3289 Dog Leg Drive, 946 Tourmaline
Drive, 3408 Long Drive, 809 Amador Circle, 1006 Ridgeview Drive, and 969 Sunup Court. August
yard of the month winners were 3284 Dog Leg Drive, 902 Meadow Vista Drive, 3564 Long Drive,
979 Ranchview Circle, 3375 Ore Court and 3566 Shadow Lane. All winners have been notified,
are excited, and appreciative that the district has started this program.

Water Department Report August 2024
Water Quality:

- The Bac-T sample results for June and July 2024 came back good.

- The Hobo water plant received 30.5 MG of (Minden) water for the month of June and 37.8 MG for July.

- North Well pumped 1.4 MG of water for the month of June and 0.57 for July. South Well pumped 2.2
MG of water for June and 0.67 for July.

- Ridgeview Well pumped 2.9 MG of water for the month of fune and 2.1 for July.

- Hobo well pumped 7.6 MG of water to the golf course for June and 14.1 MG for July.
Water Plant Rounds:

Every morning all operations of the Water plant are checked. Morning rounds consist of,

- The water level and operation of all water storage tanks are checked and recorded.



: The water pressure at the plant and off-site booster stations is checked and recorded.
- All flow and totalizer meters are checked, and the amount of water used is recorded.

- The hooster pumps at the plant are checked for proper voltage and current. They are also checked for
excessive temperatures at bearings and checked for any water leaks. All information is recorded.

- Water samples are taken from the plant, and we check the water for proper chlorine residual and
calibrate the chlorine analyzer as needed. We also check the water for PH, clarity, and temperature. All
information is recorded.

- Trends of the water system are checked through SCADA. Checking these trends for anomalies in the
distribution system can give us an early warning of future problems.

Maintenance:

- The Water department excavated a water meter pit at 979 Parkview Dr. due to a leak in a brass fitting
in the bottom of the pit.

- The Water department excavated a water meter pit at 961 Hilltop Ct. due to a leak on the supply line in
the pit.

- The Water department excavated the road in front of 3320 Dog Leg Dr. due to a leak in a service line.

- The Water department has been working on the service line inventory list that is required by the state
to ensure that there are not lead service lines located in our district. We have narrowed our list down to
around 500 lines that are going to have to be verified in the field.

Wastewater Department Report August 2024

1: Treatment plant: The #1 blower motor seized on 7/26/24. We pulled the motor and
delivered it to Sparks Electrical Motor. it had spun a bearing and needed journal machine work.
We had them repair the motor and picked it up on 8/9/24. We reinstalled it on 8/12/24 and
hope to have running by the end of the week.

| installed new air filters on all three plant blowers (8/14/24)

Ryan continues to drag our roads and Hobo Hot Springs Road. All roads are in great condition
thanks to Ryan’s work on them.

Ryan continues to spray weeds as needed. Tumble weeds and some broad leaf weeds are
sprouting up now.

2: Lift Stations: Lift 2, pump 3 failed on June 29th with a “leakage” alarm indicating mechanical
seal failure. Pac Machine confirmed that the mechanical seal had failed and that the pump
needed a major overhaul after 16 years of operation. We decided to purchase a new pump that
will arrive late September. Because this pump had the mixer, we have had to do more frequent



grease and rag removal on the wet well. | ordered new pulleys and a 36’ cable for the wet well
crane. We plan to reinstall the mixer on pump 2 today (8/15/24).

Lift 5 had several issues, we installed a new pump 1 ball check valve, the old valve was cracked
and leaking. We installed a new level transducer after the old one failed. We installed a new #1
pump after the mechanical seal failed on the old pump. | ordered and installed a cage fan in the
SCADA RTU cabinet to bring the internal temperature down. Temps have dropped with the new
fan.

All 4 lift stations continue to perform satisfactorily.

3: Sewer Collection: Ryan inspected problem manholes and is editing the list as needed. He is
up to date on manhole flushing.

Continue weekly check of sewer hot spots {manholes that develop above average grease
buildup) and physically pulling sewer lids, checking for flow, debris, root intrusion and
confirming locations in relation to our plot maps. This ongoing maintenance of the sewer
system has been very successful; we have identified potential problems long before they
develop into messy situations.



AGENDA ITEM 5b.

Reports to the Board:

b. District Accountant Report



INDIAN HILLS GID
CASH BALANCES
AS OF 6/30/24

CASH BALANCES

Operating
Reserved from rate increase
Reserved for Parks
Reserved for streets
Reserved for water tank
Operating Available

Payroll

Money Market-Nevada State Bnk
Reserve for Infrastructure
Reserve for Connections
Reserve for storm water mgt
Reserve for sewer debt reserves
Reserve for short lived assets

Money Market Available

Money Market-Moreton
Reserve for water conservation-Parks
Moreton Available

Pipeline
Reserve for USDA debt service
Reserve for O&M
Reserve for short lived assets
Reserve for AB198 capital repl
Reserve for construction
Pipeline Available
Total Available

Investment Pool
IHGID
IHCIP (2m 2007 Bonds)
Drinking Revenue Bond
Total

$ 5,029,119.02
$ 1,467,378.98
$ 19,585.14
$ 1,194,400.27
$ 35250.85

6/30/2024

$ 1,642,669.07
$ 728,062.03
$ 603,636.66
$ 5202839
$ 6227740
$ 5233820

$ 3,139,340.91
$ 5,000.00

$ 2,312,404.78

$ 25,070.02

$ 144,326.39

615,185.02
40,284.00
67,941.82

361,664.45

129,047.20
16,347.55

&HH h S

$ 3,134,340.91

$ -

$ 5,616,142.10
$ 9,506.36
$ 132,420.66
$ 209,052.45
$ 350,979.47



INDIAN HILLS GID

CASH BALANCES BY FUND

6/30/2024
CASH BALANCES 6/30/2024
WATER SEWER ADMIN
Operating 869,500.00 1,844,528.67 2,315,090.34
Reserved from rate increase 631,616.05 835,762.93
Reserved for streets 1,194 49927
Reserved for parks 19,585.14
Reserved for water tank 35,250.85
Operating Available 202,633.10 1,008,765.74 1,101,005.93
Money Market-Nevada State Bank 432,751.72 749,563.27 460,354.08
Reserve for Infrastructure 175,179.88 235,047.00 317,835.15
Reserve for Connections 314,643.33 288,993.33
Reserve for storm water mgt 52,028.39
Reserve for sewer debt service 62,277.40
Reserve for sewer short lived assets 52,338.20
Money Market Available -57,071.49 110,907.34 90,490.54
Money Market-Moreton 1,046,446.98 1,046,446.97 1,046,446.96
Reserve for water conservation-Parks 5,000.00
Moreton Available 1,046,446.98 1,046,446.97 1,041,446.96
Pipeline 615,185.02
Reserve for debt service (fully funded) 40,284.00
Reserve for O&M 67,941.82
Reserve for short lived assets 361,564.45
Reserve for AB198 capital replacement 129,047.20
Reserve for construction 16,347.55
0.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE 1,192,008.59 2,166,120.05 2,237,943.43



INDIAN HILLS GID
ATTORNEY EXPENSES
JUNE 2024

MONTHLY FEE 3,000.00

TOTAL 3,000.00



%L8°C ocoz/LiL
%Se€ LS0Z/1L/8
%S8LT csol/LL
%00y AV A
%9r'€ 920e/ L/
31lvd  INJNWAvd
1S3YIALNI  TVNIL

Anp pue uer anp 9o'ekE oY
ATHLNOW 00°LSE'E
ATHLNOW 80°¥S.'Y

AON pue Aep anp -

Anp pue uer snp /£°02Z'65

61'¢59°266'T $

6299108y ¢
vL'806'6Z. ¢
99'865'660'L $
00'000'sZy ¢
ov'086'9zc $

IN3INAVYd

JONVIVY

saleA junowe Juswied .,
(43ANTS %S9 'HALYM %SE) &

J1v1s 0L0Z ININAdId

ANM3did vasn

YIAM3S vasn

»  {ONOS 2002 ¥IMISTLYM
aNOAG €002 ¥31vMm

1493d

¥Z/0€/9 40 SV
18930 W31 9NO1
aio ST1IH NVIANI



INDIAN HILLS GID
ENGINEERING EXPENSES
JUNE 2024

ENGINEERING FEES b 4,000.00

LILY COURT 02.50

4,092.50

**FOR 2 MONTHS



LE22€°)L 0508 000 000 68285 0S¥l A A 47 009l
000 ¢ 000 000 000

000 0 000 000 000

000 0 000 000 Q00

og'6le 9 000 000 98'6le 9
06°L6 c 000 06L& & 000

000 0 000 000 000

000 0 00°C 000 000

000 0 000 000 000

oz orl (4 000 000 gz orl Z
000 0 00°0 000 000

000 0 000 000 000

8F'Z8c 8 000 98’1 9 c90.L (%
00°C 0 000 000 000

5e'65¢C g 000 61061 g'g 9169 4
00°0 0 000 000 000

ap'eee S 000 688 } 25l 1’4

sbutuleg SINCH SINOH  ¥202/82/9 SINOH  ¥20erL/9 SINOH
el [ejo aep fed ajep Aed ajep Aed
¥c0c aunr
SHNOH LNOTIVI/AWILEIAD

oMsIq Juawaacsduw| (e1auas) s||IH uelpu|

STVIOL

OINVHO3INW
JINVYHOIN
H434NS H3IM3AS
HY3IAdNS d3M3S
HO3Ll J3am3s
HOZL ¥3am3s
140ddNS NIWay
140ddnNsS NInay
H3dNS J3LVM
d3dNS H31vm
S133dLs
S13341S

SHYvYd

SHYVd

HO3L Y31vMm

HO3L ¥31vM
asfojdw3



INDIAN HILLS GID
REVENUE AND EXPENSE
NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

WATER
(OVER)/ 100.00%
INCOME BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER
FEES 1,405,000.00 1,472,157.58 (67,157.58} 104.78%
CONNECTION FEES 0.00 5,130.00 {5,130.00) 0.00%
CRICKET/VERIZON 12,441.60 11,404.80 1,036.80 91.67%
GRANT INCOME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
INTEREST 4,000.00 66,518.26 {62,518.26) 1662.96%
MISCELLANEQUS 0.00 250.00 {250.00) 0.00%
TOTAL REV 1,421,441.60 1,555,460.64 (134,019.04) 109.43%
EXPENSES

SALARIES/BENEFITS 437,246.01 388,739.38 48,506.63 88.91%
OPERATING EXP 452,975.00 382,175.41 70,799.59 84.37%
DEBT PRINCIPAL 236,732.60 150,815.62 85,916.98 63.71%
DEBT INTEREST 55,038.28 53,209.53 1,828.75 96.68%
** CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 767,314.80 (767,314.80) 0.00%
TOTAL EXP 1,181,991.89 1,742,254.74 (560,262.85) 147.40%

PROFIT 239,449.71 (186,794.10) 426,243.81

NON-CASH

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION) 545,000.00 513,699.04 31,300.96 94.26%

** |ndian Drive project paid from reserves

[3



INDIAN HILLS GID
REVENUE AND EXPENSE
NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

SEWER
(OVER)/ 100.00%
INCOME BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
FEES 1,011,000.00 1,099,231.68  (88,231.68) 108.73%
CONNECTION FEES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
INTEREST 120.00  46,754.51  (46,634.51) 38962.09%
MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 250.00 (250.00) 0.00%
TOTAL REV 1,011,120.00 1,146,236.19 (135,116.19) 113.36%

EXPENSES
SALARIES/BENEFITS 426,189.65 399,117.51 27,072.14 93.65%
OPERATING EXP 221,425.00 223,159.19 (1,734.19) 100.78%
DEBT PRINCIPAL 110,851.63 110,028.32 823.31 99.26%
DEBT INTEREST 43,437.33 39,566.32 3,871.01 91.09%
** CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 581,613.76 (581,613.76) 0.00%
TOTAL EXP 801,903.61 1,353,485.10 (551,581.49) 168.78%
PROFIT (LOSS) 209,216.39 (207,248.91) 416,465.30
NON-CASH:
infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION) 383,000.00 384,364.02 {1,864.02) 100.49%

** [ndian Drive project paid from reserves



INCOME

EXPENSES

ADMIN

PARKS

* %

STREETS

* %k

NON-CASH:

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION)

INDIAN HILLS GID
REVENUE AND EXPENSE
NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

GENERAL
(OVER)/ 100.00%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
AD VALOREM 1,154,366.00 1,161,581.68  (7,215.68) 100.63%
DOUGLAS CO. CONSOLIDATED TAX 404,710.00  400,955.15 3,750.85  99.07%
PARK REV 500.00  1,005.00 (505.00) 201.00%
GRANT 0.00  41,557.90 (41,557.90)  0.00%
DONATIONS 0.00 5096984  (5969.84)  0.00%
MISCELLANEQUS 0.00 0.00 0.00  0.00%
INTEREST 2,500.00  48,692.72  (46,192.72) 1947.71%
STORM WATER 21,700.00  22,021.55 (321.55) 101.48%
TOTAL REV 1,583,776.00 1,681,787.84  (98,011.84) 106.19%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 101,919.04  97,685.70 423334  95.85%
OPERATING EXP 223,950.00 197,451.73  26,49827  88.17%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 000  0.00%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 220,534.96 170,799.64  49,73532  77.45%
OPERATING EXP 153,175.00 161,147.51  (7,972.51) 105.20%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00  52,251.00 (52,251.00)  0.00%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 235,533.36 185,676.45  49,856.91  78.83%
OPERATING EXP 92,118.00  66,648.21  25,469.79  72.35%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 508,307.00 590,815.15  (82,508.15)  0.00%
TOTAL EXP 1,535,537.36 1,522,475.39  13,061.97  99.15%
PROFIT 48,238.64 159,312.45 (111,073.81)
338,000.00 293,408.44  44,59156  86.81%

** tennis courts from 22-23 budget reserved, dog park



(sv'sl6'se) ¢  (SSOT) ANOONI £8°v08'185°L $ SNVO11VvLOL |1971L9S'SPLS F1gVIIVAY IVLOL
{00°0$
G5 /PE'91S UORONIISUOD O} SAIBSSY
0Z'.r0'62L$  Iuowaoeidas [e)ided geLgY JO) anasay
S ¥95'19c% §19SSE PaAI| HOUS J0} anI9say
z8'L6'49% WSO o} anasay
ZL6EP'L6S L § SISNIAX3 V1Ol 00'¥8Z'0v$ {papuny Aj|ny) @01A19s 18P IO} SAI9SY
08vie'lol ¢ AepnQ [eyded Z0'sgL'sLos aulledid
£6'602'€s ¢ dx3 1sa19)u]
lrs/1'zee ¢ dx3 Bunesado
8C'6EL'88E $ sjjouag/sauees
67 L20'25%- a|qe|ieAy 1aiel Asuop
mm.mvo.vrmw SUOIIOBULIOY) 10} BAIDSDY
ww.mhr_mh_,w 24NONJISelju| JO) DAIDSDY
$9'09¢'655°L $  INNIAIN TVIO0L TLLSL'TErS 19xe Asuoi
00062 $ awoou| osIN
ogvor'Ll ¢ uozuaA
9z'815'99 ¢ 18219y 6299L'08% $ ajels suadid
00'0EL'S $ $29§ UOOBUUOD rL'806'SsTL $ vasnsuwadid  |0L££9°2028 a|qejieay Bunesado
sozer'sk ¢ $99) 9je 00062'8¥L $ (%SE) ZL0T-puog J)ep  |G8'0SZ'GES YUE] J8JEMm JO) PAISSDY
z.oc6'888 ¢ $994 ajey aseq 0¥'086'92Z $ £00Z-puog 1a1epn  1S0°9L9'LESS 2SEOIOU| 3)BJ LWOJ) PaAIBSRY
18'882'296 ¢ s9a4 Jasn 00°005'698% Bunesado
S3ISNIdX3 / SINNIAIY SIONVIVE NVO1 S3IONVIVE HSVD
¥20Z/0€/9
AUVYINNNS ANNd ¥3LYM

ai© S171H NVIANI



(65'0zz'26) ¢  (SSOT) ANOONI 99°8¥8'G2¢°L $ SNVYO11VLOL |[80°C29°6LL°LS JTGVTIVAY TVLOL
$€°206°0L1L8 aiqe|ieAy e Asuop

8L°9S¥'CYZ'L § SISNIdX3 IVLIOL

9,°€19°t88 § Aepng |enden

Nm.mwm"mm w n_xm_ 1salalu| ow.mmm.mmw S]9SSE pPaAl| JOYS Jamas 10} aAIDsSDy

6L65L'€ZZ $ dx3 Bunesedo Ot 2£2'29% B0IAIDS 1GSP JOMBS 10} DAIBSDY

LG LLL'BBE  § sjyausg/saleesg ££'€66'88C73 SUORDBUUOY JOj SAIDSBY
00 Nvo.mmmw 2INNJISelJU| JO) SAIRSSY
LZ€9G5'6VLS 1oxep Asuop

6L'982°9¥L°L$  INN3IAIY TVLIOL

00°052% 8LIOOUI ISIA $2°692'800°L$ a|qepeay bunesado

LG PG OpS 1s8u84U|

00°0% S99y UoosUUCD | 99°'865'660°) $ puog James ¥asn

LOZEP'SLS s99} 1. 00052'9/2 ¢ (%S9) ZLOZ-puog 1omes  |£6'29.'6E8S 9SE8.10U] 9je) WOY PaAIDsSay

19'662€80'L$ $994 Jas S $ 666L-puocg Jomes  |/9'8Z5'vr8 LS Bunesado

S3ISNIdX3 / SANNIAIN SIONVYIVE NYO SIONVIVE HSVYD

¥202/0€/9
AAVININNS ANNd ¥3MIS
Q19 STTIH NVIANI

I'/



SY'ZLE'651L

6€'S.¥'2ZS'LS

S1'990°c¥9$
A T ATA RS
6.'L9L'v5Y$

¥8 2182'189°L$

(ss01) IWODNI

S3SNIAJX3 V1OL
Aepng |exded

dx3g BuneredQ
sjjousg/saleles

IANNIATY TVIOL

v2Lor's8L LS

¥S°06¥°06%

6€£'820'25$
gL'Ggeg'lLeS

80 ¥GE'09v$

F7aYIIVAY TVLOL

ajqejieAy Jaxiep Asuop

16w Jajem uLojs 10§ SAIaSaY
2NjonJSelU] 10§ SAI8SDY

193Je AU

¥2'696'GS SNOaUR|122SIN
06°/55°L¥$ PaAiadal pun} JUeIS)
TL'T69'8Ys SWoou| Jsasu| 0Z'126'60°1L$ alqejieay Buyeiedo
00'500'1$ $89 UoREa.59Y L8'619'52$ sed Joj porasay
89°18S°LOL'LS X2 Waloep py LT66P'VEL'LS $]994)S IO} paAIasSYy
G1'656'00v% Xe| pajepllosuoc)
551202z 5§93} Jojem WIO)S Pe060'SLEZS Bunesado
NINaY
SIASNIdX3 / SANNIAIH SIONVYIVE HSVYD
¥202/0%/9
(W3¥0VA av)

AUVININNS S13IMLS ‘SHHVd ‘NINav
aio© STIIH NVIANI

I§



INDIAN HILLS GID
CASH BALANCES

AS OF 7/31/24
CASH BALANCES 713112024
Operating $ 4,518,233.95
Reserved from rate increase $ 1,694,367.10
Reserved for Parks $ 19,585.14
Reserved for streets $ 1,194,499.27
Reserved for water tank $ 4147165
Operating Available $ 1,568,310.79
Payroll $ 30,647.70
Money Market-Nevada State Bnk $ 1,642,861.62
Reserve for Infrastructure $ 737,687.03
Reserve for Connections $ 603,636.66
Reserve for storm water mgt $ 52,048.89
Reserve for sewer debt reserves $ 6275280
Reserve for short lived assets $ 5292595
Money Market Available $ 132,910.29
Money Market-Moreton $ 3,153,794.46
Reserve for water conservation-Parks  $ 5,000.00
Moreton Available $ 3,148,794.46
Pipeline $ 619,104.43
Reserve for USDA debt service $ 40,284.00
Reserve for O&M $ 6794182
Reserve for short lived assets $ 364,587.70
Reserve for AB198 capital repl $ 129,943.36
Reserve for construction $ 16,347.55
Pipeline Available $ -
Total Available $ 4,880,663.24
Investment Pool
IHGID 5 9,548.31
IHCIP {2m 2007 Bonds) $  133,005.02
Drinking Revenue Bond $ 209,974.97
Total $ 352,528.30



INDIAN HILLS GID

CASH BALANCES BY FUND

7/131/12024
CASH BALANCES 713112024
WATER SEWER ADMIN
Operating 920,047.52 1,665,462.79 1,832,723.63
Reserved from rate increase 807,799.09 886,568.01
Reserved for streets 1,194,499.27
Reserved for parks 19,585.14
Reserved for water tank 41,471.65
Operating Available 70,776.78 778,894.78 718,639.22
Money Market-Nevada State Bank 432 582.58 749,563.27 460,715.77
Reserve for Infrastructure 178,463.21 237,547.00 321,676.82
Reserve for Connections 314,643.33 288,993.33
Reserve for storm water mgt 52,948.89
Reserve for sewer debt service 62,752.80
Reserve for sewer short lived assets 52,925.95
Money Market Available -60,523.96 107,344.19 86,090.06
Money Market-Moreton 1,051,264.83 1,051,264.82 1,051,264.81
Reserve for water conservation-Parks 5,000.00
Moreton Available 1,051,264.83 1,051,264.82 1,046,264.81
Pipeline 619,104.43
Reserve for debt service (fully funded) 40,284.00
Reserve for Q&M 67,941.82
Reserve for short lived assets 364,587.70
Reserve for AB198 capital replacement 120,943.36
Reserve for construction 16,347.55
0.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE 1,061,517.65 1,937,503.79 1,855,994.09



MONTHLY FEE

TOTAL

INDIAN HILLS GID
ATTORNEY EXPENSES
JULY 2024

3,000.00

3,000.00



%LS°C oeoe/LiL
%STE LS02/1/8
%SL¢ 2502/1L/L
%00V 920/ 1/l
%or'e 92¢0¢/L/1
J1vd  INIWAVd
1SUIINI  TVNIL

AInr pue uer snp 90°'¢rE'OF
ATHLNOW 00°26€'€

ATHLNOW 80°v6.L'v
AON pue Aey anp .

AInr pue uer anp ££02Z2'6S

sa1leA junowe juawied ,,
(MIMIS %S9 "HILVYM %SE) «

INIJNWAVC

82°/95'%98°'Z $

1£°¢66'skr  $ 31VL1S 0L0Z ANIT3dId

e L6z $ 3ININ3Adid vasn

6.69¢'260'L $ H3Im3Is vasn

00000'sey $ »  GNOS 2002 43MIASHILVM

62°089' L1 % dNO4 £00Z ¥3LVYM
JONVYIVE 1930

ve/ielL 4O SY
1930 WY31 ONO1
aI© ST1IH NVIANI

o3



INDIAN HILLS GID

ENGINEERING EXPENSES

JULY 2024

ENGINEERING FEES

2,000.00

2,000.00

&3



vLL/8'L 00'6e 000 000 geCLs Qo'cl L8858 0gcl
000 0 000 000 000

ZEYGL £ 000 zEPSL € 000

000 0 000 000 000

84°G0L Z 000 000 827601 Z
9s'L02 14 000 96102 14 000

000 0 000 000 000

000 0 000 000 000

80°00% 9 000 000 80°00¥% 9
0v'60. 0 000 1A G GB'2S¢E g
000 0 000 000 000

000 0 000 000 000

000 0 000 000 000

000 0 000 000 000

000 0 000 000 000

000 0 Qo0 000 000

000 0 000 000 000

sbujuweg SINOH SN0  ¥202/9¢/L SINoH  ¥20Z/CLiL SinoH
jelol el a1ep Aed ajep Aed 2yep Aed
teoz Aine
SHNOH LNOTIVI/AWILYEIAO

190181 Juswacidw| |eIBUlD) S||IH UBIpu|

SIv10l

DINVHO3IW
OINVHO3IW
H3dNS 93mas
H3dNS Y3IMIS
HO31 H3aM3S
HO31 H3aM3S
140ddNS NIWaY
140ddNs NIKNQY
H3dNS ¥3LVM
H3dNS Y31vM
S13341S
S133d1S

SHAvVd

SHdvd

HO3L H31vM

HO3L d3lvm
aahojdwg

Y



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2024

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
CRICKET/VERIZON
GRANT INCOME
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS
TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION)

WATER

{OVER)/ 8.33%

BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER
1,449,585.00 166,791.97 1,282,793.03 11.51%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
12,441.60 0.00 12,441.60 0.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
60,000.00 4,817.85 55,182.15 8.03%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
1,522,026.60 171,609.82 1,350,416.78 11.28%
439,797.62 25,826.97 413,970.65 5.87%
688,450.00 12,730.15 675,719.85 1.85%
244,519.42 90,857.34 153,662.08 37.16%
47,146.48 1,799.94 45,346.54 3.82%
120,000.00 0.00 120,000.00 0.00%
1,539,913.52 131,214.40 1,408,699.12 8.52%

-17,886.92  40,395.42 {58,282.34)

503,000.00  44,588.24 458,411.76 8.86%

9



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH:

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2024

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS

TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT (LOSS)

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION])

SEWER
(OVER)/ 8.33%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
1,061,954.00 86,139.74 965,814.26 9.05%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
41,000.00 6,366.68 34,633.32 15.53%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
1,102,954.00 102,506.42 1,000,447.58 9.29%
450,440.69 24,601.14 425,839.55 5.46%
418,600.00 14,558.65 404,001.35 3.49%
114,836.79 2,228.87 112,607.92 1.94%
39,257.17 2,216.48 37,040.69 5.65%
45,000.00 0.00 45,000.00 0.00%
1,068,134.65 43,645.14 1,024,489.51 4.09%
34,819.35 58,861.28 (24,041.93)
390,000.00 31,648.82 358,351.18 8.12%

Ay



INCOME

EXPENSES

ADMIN

PARKS

STREETS

NON-CASH:

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION

INDIAN HILLS GID
REVENUE AND EXPENSE

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2024

GENERAL
(OVER)/ 8.33%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %

AD VALOREM 1,196,205.00 0.00 1,196,205.00 0.00%
DOUGLAS CO. CONSOLIDATED TAX 400,793.00 45,876.68 354,916.32 11.45%
PARK REV 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00%
GRANT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
DONATIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
MISCELLANEOUS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
INTEREST 46,000.00 5,010.40 40,989.60 10.85%
STORM WATER 21,700.00 1,834.00 19,866.00 8.45%
TOTAL REV 1,665,698.00 52,721.08 1,612,976.92 3.17%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 108,422.24 5,716.95 102,705.29 5.27%
OPERATING EXP 216,050.00 6,017.67 210,032.33 2.79%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 240,410.24 11,483.11 228,927.13 4.78%
OPERATING EXP 161,150.00 16,575.80 144,574.20 10.29%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 38,000.00 25,476.00 12,524.00 0.00%
SALARIES/BENEFITS 259,889.44 12,675.38 247,214.06 4.88%
OPERATING EXP 102,900.00 3,978.43 98,921.57 3.87%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 490,000.00 0.00 490,000.00 0.00%
TOTAL EXP 1,616,821.92 81,923.34 1,534,898.58 5.07%

PROFIT 48,876.08 (29,202.26) 78,078.34
305,700.00 24,425.00 281,275.00 7.99%

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION)



9.'25Z°LEL ¢ (SSOT) IWOINI 6v'L¥6'06Y°L $ SNVO11v1lOL [zg'zsz'ol$ 31aVIVAY V101l
00°0%
GSIPE'9LS UOIONJISUOD IO} 9Al9say
9C'Er6'6ZLS  Juswaoe|dal jepded ggLEY JO) SAISSY
0.'/86'v9¢$ S]8SSE PaAI| UOUS JO§ SAI9SY
28'L¥6'29% W0 10} sAIasay
90°.5€'0F ¢ SISNIALX3 VWLOL 00'v8Z'0v$ (papuny Ainy) 821AI8S 199p 10} BAISDY
- ¢ Aepno |epden £P'v0L'619% auljedid
v6'664'1 $ dx3 1s219)u)
gLoeLzL ¢ dx3 Bunessdo
6928'sz ¢ spyeusg/salieles
96°€25°09%- alqejieAy jaxiel Asuop
mm.m.vw_v_.mm SUOIOBUUCY J0) DAIDSDY
FN.M®¢.mN _.w 2INonJIselu] JOJ dAIaSaY
28'609°LZL $ INNIAIN TVIOL 85°28G'ZevS 193e N Asuop
- w SWIOdU| I8II
- m cON_._m>
68°/18't $ 1888y LE'C66'SHY  $ ajels auladig
- $ S99 UONOBUUOD £C216'YTL $ vasnoeuyedd |8292.0.8 a|qe|ieay Buneiado
LLpee'L $ s99} g)e 00'0S2'8FL $ {(%SE) ZL0Z-puog Jalepy  |SQ LIV LPS JUE) JBJEM O} PRAIaSaY
lgore'es ¢ $294 a)ey aseg 6.989°LLL $ £00Z-puog 19lepy  |60'662'208% SSEIOU| BJBJ WIOY PaAIaSaY
G/9z1'28 ¢ s394 Jasn 25'/10'026% Bunesado
SIASNIdXA / STNNIAINM S3IONYIVE NYO SIDONVIVE HSYD
¥202/LE1L
AHVYINIAINS ANNd ¥31VM

al9 STIH NVIANI

Do
€]



(9z°z0Z'623) (SS0O7) IWODNI G5'¥69'86.$ I1avIIVAY V101
¥e'£T6°1L8% S3aASNIIX3 VLOL 90°060°98$ a|qe|ieAy Jaxsey Asuop
009.¥'62$ fepno jended
06'125'9zZ% dx3 Bunesedp
t¥'G.8'62% sjjauag/ssueles
68'816'25% 16W Jojem Wio)s 10} aAIeSaY
Z89/9'l2es alnjeniseJiu) Joj aAasay
80'1L22°25% JNNIAIY TVLOL 210°61L2'09%% el Asuop
00°0% SNOaUE|9oSIN
00°0% PaAIR03] puny Juelo)
Ov'0L0'G$ BUICIU| saua)U] 6 709°TLi$ ajqejieay Bunesado
00°0% S99 UoNEaloay .8619'62¢ syJed 1o} paniasey
00°0% Xe) WalojeA py LZ66V'V6L'LS S}9au)s 10} paAIasay
89°0/8'Gre Xg) pajeplosuco
00'FE8'LS S99} Jojem WiIo)g £9'¢2.'2€6'LS Bunesado
NInay
S3ISNAdX3 / SINNIATY SIDONVIVE HSVD
Y20ZILEIL
(W3HOIVA av)

AUVAINNS SLITALS ‘SHAVd ‘NINQY
ai© ST1IH NVIANI

QU



SL'geg'rlE
LO'GET' VLT
00°Gee'eee
00'052'¢SZ
00055'612
00'059'561
00'05¥'€L
00°0SE'ZrL
00'885°€Z1
00'969'€6
002669
00'88b'Le
00'006'8)

o0

sainjipuadxs panoidde Joj WS SSN oM SB SSBAINAP SSLUNJOLIOS ([IM SJUNOWE SAI9S9Y

S3AYTISTH Ud3d
Ninav

00'Z¥0'SEZ 80°€58'999
96'9¥5° 202 §8'220'69Z')
00°2g€'281 00'6EP'8BL'L
00°2e¥'s9l 000£0'c20'}
00°LE6'EPL 00's¥2'66.
00°289'¢21 00°'G0L'S85
00°£89'€0} 00°286'98¢
00'289'G8 00'€95'1ZZ
00°'L69°69 00'251'66
00°9¥S L 00'v9e°L2
00 ¥56'65 000
00'¥L8'9F ooo
000LE'LE 000
00'006'22 000
SIAYISIY ¥d3a  SIAYISAY LV
YILYMILSYM

¥202-110C WOXd

88'621'GLL 0£'0Z6')8L
6€'005'881 BE'PB6'ZET' L
00°02£'001 00'89¥'aLL’L
00'0Z8'¥91 00°'/¥2'1L26
00'Leg'eel 00 ¥8+'£29
00'020°CLL 00°998'9¥.
00'829'¥6 00°Z50'cey
00'829'€L 00'v69'£92
00'0LL'0L 00'geezEL
00'viL'8Y 00°2€9°8E
00'005°64L Goo
00'961°GS 000
00°00L°0F 000
00°005°22 000

$20ere/9
£20e/0e/9
Zc0z/0e/9
1 20Z/0E/9
0202/0e/9
61L02/0¢/9
810¢/0€/9
FARFA
9l0zg/0e/e
GL0z/0e9
¥L0OZ/0E/9
£10¢/0E/9
ZL0e/0e/9

| 1OZ/0E/9

S3AYISIH Hd3A S3AHISIY 31w
d3ALVM

AVIA TVOSId A8 SIAHISIY HSVD

aio S77IH NVIONI

J1va

O
"



AGENDA ITEM 5c.

Reports to the Board:

c. Engineer Report



AGENDA ITEM 5d.

Reports to the Board:

d. Attorney Report

33



AGENDA ITEM 6.

Discussion and possible action to approve a
proposal from Lumos and Associates in the
amount of $65,500 for roadway inspection and
implementation of street saver pavement
management system for the whole district.
(General Manager, Chris Johnson/ District
Engineer, Collin Sturge)

33



: Carson City - Fallon « Lake Tahoe « Reno
4; \

Reno
9222 Prototype Drive
LUM Os Reno, Nevada 89521
775.827.6111
July 8, 2024 LA24.393-B

Chris Johnson, General Manager

Indian Hills General Improvement District
3394 James Lee Park Road

Carson City, Nevada 89705

Subject: Proposal for Roadway Inspection and Street Saver Database for the Indian
Hills General Improvement District (IHGID) — Whole District Option

Dear Chris:

Lumos & Associates, Inc. is pleased to provide you with this proposal for roadway inspection and
implementation of a Street Saver pavement management system.

Proj nderstandin

Roadway inspection of a portion of all the District roadways in accordance to ASTM D-6433 and MTC
Guidelines and corresponding creation of a Street Saver Database.

We propose the following tasks to assist you with your project:
Proj e
Task 1 — Roadway Inspection and Street Saver Database (All Roads)

Provide Paved Roadway Inspection Services under ASTM & MTC guidefines as follows:
¢ Identification and measurement of “random” sample units
¢ Identification and measurement of “special inspection” units
¢ Logging and measurement of existing pavement distresses

One (1) Senior Inspector will be provided for eighteen (18) shifts. Three hundred and twenty four
(324) paved inspection units are anticipated.
Inspection Data Input as follows:

» Log and input existing pavement distresses identified during the pavement inspections
into the Street Saver database.

Budgeting Analysis as follows:

« Provide budgeting and cost analysis under the direction of the Indian Hills G.I.D. to assist
in planning for the anticipated future conditions of the District’s paved roadways.

34



IHGID - Roadway Inspection and Street Saver Database Update
July 8, 2024
Page 2

Final PMP Report as follows:
Provide a Pavement Management Program Final Report including, but not limited to the following:

Purchase and setup of a StreetSaver Database

Detailed background of the District's Pavement Management Program

Purpose and main objectives of the study

Project Approach

Summary of the pavement network and condition

Budgeting Needs

Budget Scenarios and Summary

Inventory Report for all the District’s paved roadways to include pavement management
section descriptions and current and projected pavement condition index (PCI) values.
Maintenance and Rehabilitation (M&R) Decision Tree

Descriptions of Maintenance and Rehabilitation Treatments

Projected PCI and Cost Summary

Fee Summary

The tasks described in the Scope of Work will be completed for the following fixed fees:

Task

Description Fee

Task 1

Roadway Inspection with Street Saver Database $ 65,500

Total:| $ 65,500

*Please note that IHGID will pay an annual fee to the Street Saver Database in the amount of $1,200
to maintain a license. The fee for setup and the first year is included in this proposal.

Task 1 is Lump Sum. Lumos & Associates will be happy to amend this proposal as necessary. Any

additional

services requested but not covered by this Scope of Work can be provided by an

amendment to this proposal. Lumos & Associates, Inc. wili send monthly progress billings on this
project. The amount of these billings will be based upon the percentage of work completed.

Formal Board approval will authorize us to proceed with this work.

Thank you again for allowing Lumos & Associates to provide you with this proposal. Please do not
hesitate to contact myself or Collin Sturge at (775) 827-6111 if you have questions.

Sincerely,

Briary Harer Collin Sturge, P.E.
Serior Project Manager Project Manager
Construction Division Engineering Division

39



AGENDA ITEM 7.

Discussion and possible action to approve a
proposal Lumos and Associates in the amount of
$37,500 for roadway inspection and
implementation of street saver pavement
management system for half of the district, west
of 395.

(General Manager, Chris Johnson/ District
Engineer, Collin Sturge)

3



_ Carson City = Fallon - Lake Tahoe « Reno
A Reno

L

950 Sandhill Road, Suite 100

LUMOS Reno, Nevada 89521

775.827.6111

July 8, 2024 LA24.393-A

Chris Johnson, General Manager

Indian Hills General Improvement District
3394 James Lee Park Road

Carson City, Nevada 89705

Subject: Proposal for Roadway Inspection and Street Saver Database for the Indian
Hills General Improvement District (IHGID) — Half of District Option (West
of US395)

Dear Chris:

Lumos & Associates, Inc. is pleased to provide you with this proposal for roadway inspection and
implementation of a Street Saver pavement management system.

Project Understanding

Roadway inspection of approximately one-half of District roadways in accordance to ASTM D-6433
and MTC Guidelines and corresponding creation of a Street Saver Database.

We propose the following tasks to assist you with your project:
Project Scope
Task 1 — Roadway Inspection and Street Saver Database (Roads West of US395)

Provide Paved Roadway Inspection Services under ASTM and MTC guidelines as follows:
« Identification and measurement of “random” sample units
« Identification and measurement of "special inspection” units
» Logging and measurement of existing pavement distresses

One (1) Senior Inspector will be provided for ten (10) shifts. One hundred seventy two (172) paved
inspection units are anticipated.
Inspection Data Input as follows:

¢ Log and input existing pavement distresses identified during the pavement inspections
into the Street Saver database.

Budgeting Analysis as follows:

+ Provide budgeting and cost analysis under the direction of the Indian Hills G.I.D. to assist
in planning for the anticipated future conditions of the District’s paved roadways.

37



IHGID - Roadway Inspection and Street Saver Database Update
July 8, 2024
Page 2

Final PMP Report as follows:

Provide a Pavement Management Program Final Report including, but not limited to the following:
Purchase and setup of a StreetSaver Database

Detailed background of the District's Pavement Management Program

Purpose and main objectives of the study

Project Approach

Summary of the pavement network and condition

Budgeting Needs

Budget Scenarios and Summary

Inventory Report for all the District’s paved roadways to include pavement management
section descriptions and current and projected pavement condition index (PCI) values.
Maintenance and Rehabilitation (M&R) Decision Tree

Descriptions of Maintenance and Rehabilitation Treatments

s Projected PCI and Cost Summary

Fee Summary

The tasks described in the Scope of Work will be completed for the following fixed fees:

| Task | Description | Fee |
Task 1 Roadway Inspection & StreetSaver Database $37,500
Project Total: $37,500

*Please note that IHGID will pay an annual fee to the Street Saver Database in the amount of $1,200
to maintain a license. The fee for setup and the first year is included in this proposal.

Task 1 is Lump Sum. Lumos & Associates will be happy to amend this proposal as necessary. Any
additional services requested but not covered by this Scope of Work can be provided by an
amendment to this proposal. Lumos & Associates, Inc. will send monthly progress billings on this
project. The amount of these billings will be based upon the percentage of work completed.

Formal Board approval will authorize us to proceed with this work.

Thank you again for allowing Lumos & Associates to provide you with this proposal. Please do not
hesitate to contact myself or Collin Sturge at (775) 827-6111 if you have questions.

Sincerely,

Briarf Harer Collin Sturge, P.E.
or Project Manager Project Manager

Construction Division Engineering Division

38



AGENDA ITEM 8.

Discussion only regarding excess speeding
residents are experiencing on Mica Drive, North
Sunridge Drive and South Sunridge Drive.
(Resident, Sharon Buckley)

39



Brooke Thomeson

From: Sharon <s.buckley@charter.net>
Sent: Tuesday, August 13, 2024 1:10 PM
To: Brooke Thompson

Subject: Item for a future agenda

Hi Brooke. | am sending this email in hopes of revisiting the increased volume and excess speeding we
are experiencing on Mica Drive, N and S Sunridge.

Your crews were out today working on Mica cleaning up weeds and debris from the medians, and they
experienced cars traveling at outrageous speeds, and many were oblivious to the road work signs and
most were talking on their phones or texting. | see it every day.

| know this subject was “addressed” last yr or the year before, but nothing was done to mediate the
speeding. Volume has increased significantly because many of the
residents of the new homes near the Catholic Church use Mica drive as their access and egress points.

| have personally witnessed several near fatal pedestrians vs auto collisions at the cross walk at Mica
and N Sunridge - even with the flashing lights. Most of these drivers are looking at their phones and are
oblivious to the flashing lights and the pedestrians/dogs, etc.

| will re-read Bob’s report from 2/15/2023. | have read Chris Johnson’s report from June 21, 2023. | am not
confident in that “traffic count’ nor recorded speeds of the traffic. | observed dozens and dozens of cars
speeding excessively every day from my office window. | challenge this report and would like to pursue
another method to track volume and speed - perhaps have the Douglas Co Sheriff’s office do traffic
patrol and use a radar gun to track speeds.

I’ve been told that this is not an option, but | don’t believe that it is not an option. | personally will pay for
the traffic study if done right with DCSO personnel involved.

With all this said, | am requesting that this item be placed on the agenda at the earliest
opportunity. Adequate notice of the item being placed on the agenda would be appreciated so that | can
rally the residents who are also very concerned about how the speeding has affected them.

Thank you.

Sharon Buckley

1039 Mica Drive
Carson City, NV 89705
s.buckley@charter.net
(530) 575-1875



AGENDA ITEM 9.

Discussion and possible action regarding tennis
court lockage.
(Resident, Koko Green)



INDIAN HILLS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

Please provide the following information for an item to be placed on the Agenda for a
Board of Trustees Meeting:

5
Today’s Date: é’l 3) ‘E’Li’

Date/Month of Meeting: aé?/ ‘ &)—/

Meeting Type: 3™ Wednesday Business Iﬂ

Your Name and Title: _ KO_K_O G}Q{E’EAL

Your Company or Organization Name: _

Phone Number: _ 52{} - 2){1 E_:S, (l

Check One: Discussion Only Item ] Discussion and Possible Action Item E

Agenda Item Title: 'TE“N\Q (LOEJ RT I—DC—Eﬁ@ — .
Agenda Item Description: MG‘Q/QUND INFD U QM&T’L _ Erg\{[_ei\/

CAURRENT TENNIS  CoURT LbekAcE PROCEDURES , Diswss
OPNeNS N Lyl OF KKEY LOCKS,

REQUIRED: Please attach background information regarding your requested Agenda Item
to be included in the Board of Trustees’ Board Meeting Packet. (Letter, Proposal, etc.)

IHGID is an Equa!

Opportunity Provider L/ &



BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON TENNIS COURT LOCKAGE

+ Tennis courts were locked with combination locks due to vandalism

¢ These locks were stolen

¢ Onljuly 22, new procedures were implemented using key locks

o DURING THE WEEK, courts would be unlocked at 7:40 am and locked at 3:45 pm

e ON WEKENDS, the court are locked unless you go to the office prior to the weekend
and pay $200 deposit for use of gate key. Once key is return, the deposit will be
refunded.

¢ EXCESSIVE DEPOSIT FEE
¢+ DRASTIC measure to curb vandalism. Can other options be considered?
e COMMUNICATION

43



AGENDA ITEM 10.

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft
Minutes from the June 26, 2024, Board meeting.



Minutes
Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees Meeting
District Office
3394 James Lee Park Rd. #A
Carson City, NV 89705

June 26, 2024
Regular Board Meeting

6:00 P.M.

Trustees Present: Chairman Robert Stulac, Vice Chairman Garcia, Secretary/Treasurer Siegman,
(arrived at the meeting late at 6:41) and Trustee Lufrano.

Trustees Absent: Trustee Dunham.

Staff Present: General Manager Chris Johnson, and Administrative Services Supervisor/Human
Resources Brooke Thompson.

Others Present: District Counsel Chuck Zumpft, District Engineer Colin Surge, Residents Lynn
Dement, Kathy Waters, Lorre St. Germaine, and Peter Beekhof with Westridge Homes.

6:00P.M. - Regular Meeting

1. Call to Order
Request that Cell Phones and Pagers be turned off for recording purposes.
Chairman Stulac called the meeting to order at 6:00PM.

2, Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Secretary/Treasurer Siegman

3. Public Interest Comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated she owes Chris, Brooke, and staff a
huge bode of thanks for the work they put into the dog park, it is awesome. It is really
beautiful, the care that went into installing it, so it is a true agility course. Lynn stated she
thinks people who were resistant to it are using it, she can see footprints. If you haven’t been
over there you should go take a look, it is just beautiful. Thank you.

Resident Lorre St. Germain stated that she owns 3524 Silverado drive. She didn’t see a point
on the agenda of approving the minutes of last meeting. Chairman Stulac stated it is there,
item 14, Lorree stated ok she wants to make corrections to those minutes before they are
approved, there are some major inaccuracies she wants corrected before they are approved.

4. Approval of Agenda
Chairman Stulac stated absent objection he approves the agenda. No objection. Item

passed, agenda approved.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
P

45



Discussion and possible action to approve a renewal proposal from Nevada Public
Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) and approval for payment from fiscal year 2024-2025
funds.

Jim Norton and Wayne Carlson introduced themselves to the board. Jim stated that most of
you have heard about the chaos in the insurance industry that you read and hear from the
news is not an exaggeration. He mentions this because this does not apply to the pool. This
year Wayne negotiated the most favorable terms ever, the average increase was 9.2%. Indian
Hills increase was 4.4%, you have been with them since 2001, your loss experience has been
exemplary. If it weren’t for the park, you would be perfect. Indian Hills has as much as any
pool member use as much and very effectively as anyone

Wayne Carlson stated he is the Executive Director of the pool. In your packet is the
proposal, he went over the coverages listed, property liability, environmental, cyber all
remain the same no changes. On page 9 the chart shows and explains the risk and structure
of the program. The comparative standpoint increase for you is 4.3%, if you look at the
exposure increase in payroll liability, those exposures are what they rate us on and discount
on experience. Which of yours is excellent, your rates are flat with modest exposure. The
rest of the packet is about the services they offer but they have a team of risk management
staff, they have committees, grant programs, training grants, cyber side is business email
where they have the most problems. Wayne stated the e-learning program, you are utilizing
in FY 21-22 you had twenty-five courses all completed, in FY 22-23, 38 courses enrolled
and 34 completed 23-24 148 courses enrolled, 145 completed so far this year 45 users take
courses that is 293 logins for those people. It is a very valuable tool for staff and the board.
There is a ton of support for you.

Trustee Lufrano stated that she previously worked for a County in Nevada that used the
services she would say that she very much liked and appreciated the programs provided.
Trustee Lufrano stated as a board member she took part in the e-learning courses and found
that valuable.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated he thinks it is a great program.

Trustee Garcia stated to summarize there was no reduction in our coverage, we are taking
full advantage of training, and our percentage increase is reasonable at 4.4%. It is an
increase, but it is less that what you would expect on the open market. Trustee Garcia stated
that he appreciates the relationship we have with Pool Pact.

Chairman Stulac stated he has one question on the law enforcement fire protection what is
that.

Wayne Carlson stated it is for Cities and Counties with law enforcement agencies so that is
focused on them.

Public comment: none.

Trustee Garcia motioned to approve renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Insurance

Pool (POOL) and approval for payment in the amount of $76,675.30 from fiscal year 2024-2025

funds. Trustee Lufrano seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
SO0

by



Discussion and possible action to approve, approve with conditions or deny the request
from Stanka Consulting LTD. regarding a 50-foot right-of-way associated with future
development at 3282 Plymouth Drive.

Peter Beekhof with Westridge Homes stated this is asking for right of way, same as
discussed at last month’s meeting. This is reducing the right of way from sixty feet to fifty
feet. Peter showed the board a larger map.

Trusiee Garcia stated it is his understanding that the district engineer is recommending
approval with conditions. District Engineer Collin Sturge stated that is correct subject to the
tentative map approval.

Trustee Dunham stated this was approved not long ago for four lots.

Peter stated we had two five acres parcels; the County wanted them to pave tenant road, so
they cut off one lot and removed one residence. The County adopted last year a new
ordinance where they would have to wait a year to get another approved so they are doing it
as a subdivision now so they can do the subdivision at one time, all is available at one time.
Trustee Dunham asked the General Manager what he feels the upside of approving this is.
General Manager Chris Johnson stated that they are already are annexed in.

Trustee Dunham stated he has been in the business his whole life.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated they are already annexed in.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated this is just to approve the right of way correct.

Peter Beekhof stated yes that is correct.

Public comment: none.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman asked Chris do you have any concerns with the roads as far as
snow removal.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated no, Russ. Chris stated Dale the benefit it brings to us
is that it is five more connections to the district.

Chairman Stulac stated looking at this it has already been annexed into the district, it is
pretty straight forward in his eyes.

Trustee Garcia motioned to approve with conditions as stated in the District Engineer's letter
the request from Stanka Consulting LTD. regarding a 50-foot right-of-way associated with future
development at 3282 Plymouth Drive. Trustee Lufrano seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-3-

T



7. Discussion and possible action to approve, approve with conditions or deny the request

from Stanka Consulting LTD. regarding Indian Hills GID’s acceptance of ownership
and maintenance of proposed utilities (water & Sewer) and/or proposed surface
improvements (road, curb, and gutter) of the proposed roadway and future
development at 3282 Plymouth Drive.
Peter Beekhof stated this is the one where we had a lot of discussion last month. He hasn’t
figured out a way to get around the GID not taking care of the road maintenance for the five
or six houses. Peter stated that he understands the board’s blight on taking on more roads.
The only benefit is you get those tax dollars for a few years until it needs maintenance. They
have included the sidewalks the board has asked for, so they are kind of at a standstill.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated we didn’t ask for the sidewalks, we told you if you
wanted us to consider owning it, we need it to be to our standards that was part of the
conditions if we were to consider it.

Peter Beekhof stated that is why we included them.

Trustee Lufrano stated that she has no questions. Vicky recapped what they talked about last
month, she stated that they talked in great depth about it, we talked about receiving ad
valorem taxes for the parcel, sidewalks wouldn’t require maintenance for several years same
with the streets. We have heard from others already about snow removal in the donut hole so
there is nothing we can do about that. Peter talked about a HOA for six homes and how it
just didn’t make sense.

Trustee Garcia stated his concerns have been addressed, during the first vote the District
Engineer and General Manager recommended not accepting. This time they both
recommend accepting this. For him it has to do with the addition of sidewalk, curb, and
gutter. What he didn’t want was to set a precedent to go against our standards. Trustee
Garcia stated that he has no concerns now that the General Manager and Engineer are
recommending accepting it.

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated he is recommending acceptance with conditions.

Chairman Stulac stated thanks to Brooke she sent all the minutes from the last meeting this
was discussed in November 2022, that helped him get the history, what stood out to him was
what Chuck said which was historically we have approved these, especially once they have
been annexed. If they meet our standards that made him feel good that they want to be
consistent as a board, he likes consistency.

Public comment: Resident Lorree St. Germain stated she owns the property at 3524 Silverado she
is having a hard time hearing them. On this project is he going to be required to pay for the
infrastructure.

Chairman Stulac stated the developer is paying for those costs.

Resident Loree St. Germain stated she went back to 1973 when this organization was
created and read seventy pages of development agreements it specified that Indian Hills was
responsible for all the infrastructure including curb and sidewalks. Last year she had an issue

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-4 -

4§



with her sidewalk, he ultimately did repair it, but it seems that he is giving people the
statements that it is the owner’s responsibility to repair the sidewalk she would like to clarify
that because she does not think that is correct.

Trustee Garcia motioned to approve with conditions as stated in the District Engineer’s letter
the request from Stanka Consulting LTD. regarding Indian Hills GID’s acceptance of ownership
and maintenance of proposed utilities (water & Sewer) and/or proposed surface improvements
(road, curb, and gutter} of the proposed roadway and future development at 3282 Plymouth
Drive. Secretary/Treasurer Siegman seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

8. Discussion and possible action to approve, approve with conditions or deny the request
from Stanka Consulting LTD. on a tentative subdivision map for 3282 Plymouth Drive.
Peter Beekhof stated this is the last of the three items, the tentative map, this is the final
item. The final map will be presented to you later to make sure they meet all requirements
set forth by the board.

Chairman Stulac stated the engineer is recommending approval given that the other two
iterns were approved.

Trustee Lufrano stated last month we needed page one of two, so was this combined to be
one now. Peter Beekhof stated yes.

Trustee Lufrano asked District Counsel Zumpft is this adequate for what you were looking
for last month. District Counsel Zumpft stated yes.

Public comment: none.

Trustee Garcia motioned to approve with conditions as stated in the District Engineer’s letter
the request from Stanka Consulting LTD. on a tentative subdivision map for 3282 Plymouth
Drive. Secretary/Treasurer Siegman seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

9. Presentation: Update on the Carson River Watershed 30-Year Regional Drought and
Water Sustainability Plan.
Ed James, General Manager with Carson Water Sub Conservancy District introduced
himself to the board. Ed went through the presentation provided in the board packet this is
an update on the 30-year regional water plan.

Trustee Garcia stated mitigation opportunities and what influence does CWSD have over
growth, like approving permits. Ed James stated that they have no regulatory authority. The
hope to avoid any mitigation.

Trustee Dunham stated he is happy to be here listening to this. It makes us think and look at
water getting more expensive. With the district and all the grass, we are watering what do
we think about that.

General Manger Chris Johnson stated that is precisely why we want to put pickle ball courts
out on the soccer field, where we can eliminate underutilized grass, we will.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-5-

44



Chairman Stulac stated that he wants to mention a few things during his career at the state
NDEP there were always a lot of issues with lawsuits, so he appreciates what CWSD is
doing so we don’t get to that point. Robert mentioned a while ago, doing conservation ideas
of things to do around the district so we have discussed this before. Chairman Stulac stated
thank you Ed for your presentation.

Public comment: none.

Recess 7:22PM
Reconvene 7:29PM

10.  Reports to the Board:

a. General Manager Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed his report with the Board.
1. Administrative
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the report to the Board.
2. Water
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the report to the Board.
3. Wastewater
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the report to the Board.
b. District Accountant Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the report to the Board.
c. Engineer Report
District Engineer Colin Sturge stated that Chris touched on the Vista Grande
extension project. He has been coordinating with Douglas County on the
South Airport well study. He has submitted the North Tank project to NDEP
for review. Once he gets that back, we will go out to bid.
d. Attorney Report District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he has nothing to
report.

Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated that we really need to make sure there is a camera
focused on the dog park. It is new and was expensive, so we want to make sure it doesn’t get
vandalized. Lynn stated the yard of the month was done to encourage people to keep their yard up,
they love it, and she thinks it is serving a purpose.

11.  Discussion and possible action to reduce the easement located at 3524 Silverado Drive.
Loree St. Germain owner of 3524 Silverado Drive went through the history of this property
and what she has done for the last ten months regarding this. In September of 1993 Douglas
County, Indian Hills and Mr. Serpa got together to do the development agreement of Valley
Vista Estates. Subsequent to that there were 261 homes, subsequent to that the first thing
that got recorded was on June 6, 1994 the phase Al of the subdivision on that map it
specified that her entire parcel was to be a water tank easement. To the best of her
knowledge back in 1994 there was a 100-gallon water tank and maybe a well, well house.
April of 1995 a permit was taken out to put in a booster station with that there was to be a 2-
million-gallon water tank to sit where her house is now that tank was to facilitate the water
for the subdivision that tank has never set site on the property. Then in August of 1995 the

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-6 -

50



electric company and Mr. Serpa came in and put in a blanket electric easement over her
entire parcel exactly like the water tank easement had been done. That easement required an
indenture. Mr. Serpa did not perform his portions of that contract after the electricity
company came in and did their work. She assumes it was for the booster station was
installed, which she has yet to get an answer on what the booster station is for, what is has
done since its installation. In 1999 there was a major function done was in the cul-de-sac
where an altitude vault was installed. In 1999-2001 nothing seemed to occur. In 2001 Mr.
Serpa requested an abandonment of the entire easement of the property there were two parts
to that, one was the modification of the cul-de-sac because the vault put in cause and
problem and a portion of the cul-de-sac had to be abandoned and taken out of her now
parcel. There are no factual documents on that. Five weeks after the abandonment was
approved by the Planning Commission and County Commission Mr. Serpa came in with a
final subdivision map for phase 6, the last one. The only adjustment recorded was done on
the subdivision map. There was no legal description, no size of the easement, no meets and
bounds, no documents to show that process had taken place. Neither the original easement
or the blanket utility or the abandonment appear on her title report, the electric blanket
easement is still on there today. She does not know how Douglas County allowed a house to
be put on this parcel that had a blanket easement on the entire parcel. So now she is in a
situation where she has a cloud on her title and a blanket utility easement that should have
been per the agreement with Mr. Serpa only a ten-foot easement with the electric company.
Loree stated last week she had mark out people come to the property to mark out her
inaccessible and unusable area by her for the last 20 years. She spoke with Mr. Johnson
because she wanted to have any water lines identified whether in the area the booster station
is or outside and if that was not done, she was quite disappointed. The only piping she can
see in the plans. Now we have a situation where no pipes are coming to the north, the larger
pipes are coming into the street. She has been in contact with NV energy to reduce the
easement. She has repeatedly asked what the size of the easement is and keeps being told to
go find out herself. The tank was removed in 2011 and there is nothing left on this parcel but
the booster station and the generator, that booster station is 540 square feet. She proposes a
reduction in easement to achieve what has been her land for the last 20 years that she has not
had access to and possibly get another parcel out of it. What exactly is the necessity for your
water distribution for that pump station and what exactly is it used for. Ironically this all
happened because of the fence, Loree pointed it out on a map. Her fence fell down. She
stated that she contacted Indian Hills asking if she could tie into our fence pole to replace
her fence, Indian Hills GID said yes. Two days after she put that in Douglas County code
enforcement came in contrary to minutes the fence is not eight feet it is six feet and told her
it is not in compliance. It needs to be cut to four feet or she will be fined.

Chairman Stulac stated huh, I don’t have a restriction on my fence.

Administrative Services Supervisor/ Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated yes you do
for the front yard.

Chairman Stulac stated Loree can you clearly tell me what you want the size of the easement
to be and what the size of the easement is now.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-7-

51



Property owner Loree St. Germain stated I don’t know what the legal size of the easement
is, I have asked three times for it. Her best estimation is 18,628 feet.

Trustee Dunham stated you bought a lot, and I don’t see an official lot size.

Resident Loree stated the original square footage was 33,981 that has been amended since
the adjustment of the cul-de-sac to 34,565.

Trustee Dunham stated that he is not sure what you are asking for, this is confusing. It is
hard to get an easement abandoned. Easements are able to be abandoned but they don’t have
the information needed. You should find a real estate attorney to help you he can’t say yeah
or nah with this information.

Loree stated that abandonment and easement had nothing to do with her the county made the
adjustment. That was not under her to have done.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated and showed the board the final map that was
recorded in 2002 it does reflect the adjustment to the cul-de-sac. This is the final recorded
map; it shows everything it should. The abandonment was because they initially proposed to
put a 2-million-gallon water tank there and determined they didn’t need the full-size
easement and recorded the smaller existing easement.

Trustee Garcia stated that is Douglas County or our easement.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated no that is our easement. Chris stated that he has
explained to Mrs. St. Germain what the easement is for, why and how it ties into the other
pipes. He explained how the booster station brings the water up and that it feeds that entire
upper section of the district.

Trustee Garcia stated ok so there is infrastructure there that is utilized and needed.
General Manager Chris Johnson stated absolutely.

Chairman Stulac stated so there are pipes coming out of that easement area. General
Manager Chris Johnson stated yes.

Loree stated that is absolutely false, absolutely false, absolutely false let me read the
statement to you, she read it. Loree stated guess I am not a member of public. That is why
she had that place scanned who do mark outs there are no pipes on the north.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated the reason waterlines were not marked is because
when someone calls 811 for digs, they request it for the project area, they did mark out her
property but did not mark out what is on our easement. We are not going to mark out what is
on our easement only on her usable property. It is not required for them to mark out what is
on our easement.

Loree stated it is my usable property, it has been denied to her for 20 years.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

N 53



General Manager Chris Johnson stated that the statement she read was made before the
property it had a home on it. It is the developer’s prerogative to do that.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he would like to know what the request is all he has
heard is there is a request to reduce the easement, what does that mean. Does it mean to
abandon the entire easement. Is that your request.

Loree stated my request is for your organization to tell her what the minimum size necessary
for a 580 square foot building to pump water to wherever you need to, what does the district
need.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated why would we need to do that.
Loree stated because you don’t need 18,000 square feet to do that.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated we have 18,000 square feet. He is a little lost.

Chuck stated the applicant shared some history about the property back to the early 1990’s
and throughout that presentation she referred to it as her property. It wasn’t her property
until 2004 when she acquired it. Chuck stated it is his belief that she purchased the property
after the improvements located on the property were constructed those were there when she
purchased with full knowledge that they were there. What he is hearing is the improvements
are improperly placed there. Nevada supreme court has confirmed that governmental entities
have the right to claim adverse possession of property. It is a 15-year term, you go back
from the date of a lawsuit filed. There is no lawsuit so let’s call it today, we go 15 years
from today so starting 15 years ago that clock started to click. She allowed them to be there
and continue to be there. He understands she is unhappy, but she hasn’t filed an action to file
a removal. Based on what he has heard tonight she could be right maybe those maps don’t
authorize those facilities but if we go to court, he is confident that the court would have no
alternative but to find that we have established adverse possession of that property. In his
world her shares maybe they deserve sympathy, but he does not believe she has any legal
resources to demand this district to make any changes to those established facilities. That is
his opinion. Easements can be created in many different ways maps, etc., including adverse
possession, if the maps are wrong, he still thinks we have the right to maintain the facilities
through adverse possession.

Trustee Garcia stated the complaint request is at our expense to find out through a survey
and find out how much smaller we can make it.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated we have zero obligation to do anything. You buy
something and you see it is there on the property you have a duty to act at that time she
waived that opportunity. That is his opinion.

Loree stated no it did not because it did not appear on the title report.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated it appeared on the ground, it has been there for 20
years or more.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

53



Loree stated the only way it surfaced was because of the fence.
District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he doesn’t care about that.

Loree stated you can not give her justification for 18,000 square feet for a 540 square foot
building.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated we don’t have to; we don’t have to give you
justification for anything.

Loree stated well you are going to see signs on that property like you have never seen.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated that does raise one concern Mrs. St. Germain rebuilt
her fence she brought it straight across here now instead of where it was, so it is in the
easement cuts it off.

Loree started yelling at Chris that’s a lie, that’s an absolute lie, absolute lie, you are a liar.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated this all came about because of the fence. Her
neighbors complained to code, that is when it all started. County code told her to remove it.

Chairman Stulac stated Loree you stated that you never would have discovered this if the
fence didn’t blow down can you explain that. You knew that was an easement so the fence
blowing down didn’t have anything to do with it.

Loree stated don’t know how it came about last September she wrote to Stewart title never
heard from them, finally heard from someone in Texas claims office is in Colorado. She
didn’t have the information she now has, most of this information came from the District
Attorney.

Chairman Stulac stated but you said fence blew over what does that have to do with the
easement.

Loree stated she looked at the space that was between what was the fence and the perimeter
fences and noticed lots of space. She has been here for 20 years and has land that she can’t
access or use it.

Trustee Garcia stated easements don’t require that there be infrastructure on it to be an
casement. The easement exists regardless.

Public comment: none

General Manager Chris Johnson stated that he did meet with her, and we have met the public
records request. Her outburst tonight is why all conversations with her are recorded and
Brooke is present with him. In her public records request she stated she wanted the
documents mailed to her at her address in Coranado California, we sent them down there

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-10-

5



and got it back today showing that she was not there to receive them, but we did meet the
public records request.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated it is an existing easement and there is no reason to
change it and if we did entertain changing it, it would be at your cost not the districts. If you
want that infrastructure moved it would be on you to pay for it.

Loree stated she already paid for the parcel.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated that if you want the infrastructure moved to a different
location it would at your expense.

Loree stated I am not looking at moving infrastructure I am just looking for your
organization to tell me the exact size of the easement you need to facilitate your booster
station.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated that it.

Trustee Garcia stated that would be a burden on the district to go to that expense.

Loree stated that is an abuse of power, absolute abuse.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated he defers to our District Counsel.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he is ok with that.

Loree stated your attorney is uh, I have some words for him.

Chairman Stulac stated like with a lot of things Loree, buyer beware, when you are buying
things there is a responsibility to look into what is there and what you are getting into. Those
questions should be asked when you are trying to purchase the property in the beginning.
That was the time to raise these concerns, not now. He understands what she is trying to do,
but in reality, it is not practical in his opinion.

Trustee Lufrano stated that she has nothing to add.

Trustee Garcia stated the easement exists and our attorney advised even if it was incorrect
because it has been 15 years we have a right to it. Lorree is asking for us to go at our
expense and tell her how much land we need for the booster station and infrastructure, and
we don’t have that kind of money. We have no requirement or obligation to do this at all. He
feels for Mrs. St. Germain. He does not think we can solve this issue.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated that we haven’t heard from Collin on this, he was his

first call. Chris stated one of our concerns is that we are limited in space, that is an aging
booster station, and we need the space to work on it.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

o 55



District Engineer Collin Sturge stated that the pump station needs to remain operational if
we need to work on it or replace it with a new one.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he is going to bring up another concern that Chris
shared a minute ago. The fence placement, what he shared about adverse possession goes
back to England and the law is that citizenry cannot adversely possess the king’s property,
but the king can adversely possess the citizen property. It is one way street when the
government is on the other side, if the maps as Mrs. St. Germain stated are right and the
maps are not correct, we still have a right to be where we are by the fact that we are there.
Chuck stated what he is seeing here is if the property on her side where she put the fence on
the easement if she excludes us, it may effectively shrink our easement if it exists by adverse
possession. We are entitled to continue to use what we use but if she excludes us, he doesn’t
know. If our easement is there and corrected based on the maps, then we can remove the
fence at any time we may need to remove the fence that she put there. We may have a need
to remove the fence that she improperly placed there.

Chairman Stulac stated at this point the fence goes through the easement you incorporated
an area that isn’t yours. Chairman Stulac stated Chuck Zumpft when and how do we address
the fence.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he would want to talk to Chris and Collin about the
fence issue.

Loree stated you keep forgetting about the blanket easement of the entire parcel from the
electric company.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated we have no control or say over the electric easement.
You mentioned needing a motion, he doesn’t think there is any action to be taken and he
suggests no motion be made, unless a Trustee wants to make a motion.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated the fence and what Chuck is talking about is come
the need for us to need to access that area that she has fenced in we will remove it if needed.
For the record where the fence is now if we have an emergency, we will remove what is on
that easement.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated that is true and goes back to her belief that the maps
are improper.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated with her fence being on there and us doing nothing
about it now does that give her approval or inferred abandonment of the easement.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated that is why he raised the little story about the
adversely possess the king’s property. In this situation the district is the king.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-12-

50



12.

Loree stated that she is going to hire someone because Mr. Johnson blatantly didn’t have the
pipes marked out so she will hire a private company and mark out the water lines that you
refuse to do. She has schematics that show absolutely nothing coming out of the north.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated there are no lines to the north, they are to the east,
west and south.

Chairman Stulac stated Loree he would like to remind you that when you worked with that
realtor in the beginning you were made aware of the easement at that time.

No action was taken on this item.

Discussion and possible action regarding updating the District’s Pavement Condition
Index in its entirety or in sections.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated we are looking at is discussion on what the board
wants to do for the PCI. Do we want to go the entire district or half of the district. Speaking
with Collin tonight he originally intended to do the east side, the software that is addressed
in here we have access to already. District Engineer Collin Sturge stated the proposal is on
pages 108 and 109 included is quotes for half of the district or the entire district. The
database that has year constructed of all roads, the stress index and maintenance we are
doing, and it is constantly updating. We have access to that, and it will update as we go.
Collin is recommending doing the full because of that and we will know what we have
moving forward.

Chairman Stwulac stated yes, he asked for a break down on the pricing.
District Engineer Collin Sturge went over the cost breakdown.

General Manager Chirs Johnson stated this data base will update automatically so we
shouldn’t have to do another PCI on our current roads only on new construction roads when
we replace them.

Trustee Garcia stated is this the software we are buying.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated we will own a license for it, but he doesn’t know if
we will own the software, so we will need to renew it but not sure how often.

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated he is not sure if there is a license fee that we would
need to maintain.

Trustee Garcia stated that would be important to know before deciding. We have a PCI that
we have already done so we can’t do or use this software with that PCI. Can we avoid
making a new PCI.

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated that there are a lot of deficiencies, we still have to go
through the effort of what the software is doing to get accurate information.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
- 13- o

277



General Manager Chris Johnson stated no it would not replace a new PCI. We will not get
that historical data off old information.

Trustee Garcia stated that it’s useful data but doesn’t replace a new PCI, can we do half and
wait on the other so we can accrue more interest.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated when would we do the other half, we are saving
money by doing it now. Chris stated his plan was and he didn’t know we were going to look
at the software thought it would be a static PCI that is why he looked at doing half of the
district and then after road work do the rest. Now we don’t have to do another PCI after a
new road because with this it makes sense to do it now. Then when we do Amador, we just
update it at that time.

Trustee Garcia stated there is no benefit to waiting and split it up.

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated yes it makes more sense to do it all now. Historically
it was done in two because they were static PCI's it will take a few months and we would
start in the fall. In the spring will be a maintenance project based on the results of this PCI, it
will lead to better care of the roads too.

Trustee Garcia stated and we have the funds.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated yes, we have $480,000 in the roads project fund.

Chairman Stulac stated so if we were able to proceed with all would you still be able to
proceed with Amador replacement.

Trustee Garcia stated the PCI will dictate what we do next.

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated yes, the PCI will dictate maintenance of roads to
maintain and protect roads that are not as far gone as others like Amador.

Trustee Garcia stated the only missing piece of the puzzle for him now is the licensing cost.
Chairman Stulac stated what he envisioned is a rank system, will these be ranked in order.

District Engineer Collin Sturge stated it will provide a ranking to each road if we are
maintaining our roads better then we don’t get to the point like Amador is as quickly.

District General Manager Chris Johnson stated yes, we will see what roads are in the worst
condition and can use that to decide on what the next road is for replacement or status of
their road.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated he wants to know if there is any ongoing cost, he
imagines it is not going to be substantial.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-14 -

o



Public comment: none
No action taken on this item; it will be brought back to the board.

13.  Discussion and possible action to approve amendments to the District’s Water Service
Policy

General Manager Chris Johnson stated the biggest reason for this is the new State mandate,
we need to specify where the districts responsibility ends and starts for the property owner,
it wasn’t in our policy, so we needed to add it. Chris stated one thing to point out is on page
117 it should say valve not value. The other change is removing all the excess language
about leaks, leaving it at the board’s discretion.

Chairman Stulac stated so this is a brand-new section.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated yes, the state says this needs to be done and spelled
out.

Chairman Stulac stated on page 116 the cross pit he has one of those, he was needing to shut
his water off and figured out his meter was crossed.

Administrative Services Supervisor/ Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated the meters
are actually crossed going to wrong house and being billed incorrectly.

Trustee Lufrano stated you only go back six months.

Administrative Services Supervisor/ Human Resources Brooke Thompson stated yes and
that was added in 2019 we didn’t have anything before that, and we haven’t had any of these
come up in a while.

Public comment: none

Trustee Garcia motioned to approve amendments to the District’s water service policy with one
spelling correction under section 8 changing value to valve. Trustee Lufrano seconded. Motion
carried unanimously.

14.  Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the May 22, 2024, Board
meeting.

Trustee Lufrano stated on page 121 end of item 6 it should say Trustee Lufrano, not Trustee
Garcia,

Public comment: Loree St. Germain stated that the minutes on page 128 general manager gave the
board history this parcel used to be an easement. Then states she can tie in the fence shortly after
she put in an eight-foot fence, no I did not put in an eight-foot fence I put in a six-foot fence, then it
states one of her neighbors did like the fence, it should be did not like the fence. Page 129 code
enforcement called and told her she can’t have an eight-foot prison fence around her house. That

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-15-

59



never ever happened. Chirs spoke to Mrs. St. Germain and told her we cannot reduce the
easement because we have infrastructure, she seemed fine at the time. She doesn’t think that
was the case.

Administrative Services Supervisor/ Human Resources Brooke Thompson asked District
Counsel Chuck Zumpft if these minutes are based off of what was actually said in the
meeting, I listen to the recording while typing them. District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated
right, yes that is the function of the minutes, if what was said at the meeting was not
accurate that is a different issue that doesn’t change what was said or happened at the
meeting. For today the minutes of this meeting will reflect that the public comment included
some perceived errors, factual errors that occurred at the prior meeting, but you don’t
change the minutes.

Loree St. Germain unbelievable, just unbelievable. One more thing Chris stated that he
explained to her several times that we have infrastructure on the easement, the bottom line is
you bought a parcel with an easement on it and now 20 years later you want us to reduce it,
we are not going to reduce it. Loree stated she thinks Mr. Johnson is expanding his bounds
in making that comment, that is wrong it can only be adjudicated by this board here. He is
taking a lot of authority on his shoulders that he doesn’t have until it comes out of the
mouths of all of you. Loree went on about her paying taxes on the entire parcel, you should
check with the county assessor about what you say to people Mr. Zumpft that is not
accurate.

District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated thank you for the guidance.

Loree stated thank you all, it has been a very long night, she thought this would be more
rewarding and now it has been confrontational, she thinks that is coming from Douglas
County to Indian Hills, to Mr. Johnson to the board and down to her. She will be dealing
with some civil engineers who she hopes are civil in their work and outcome.

Trustee Lufrano motioned to approve draft minutes with one correction on page 121. Trustee
Garcia seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

15.  Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence
Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications
received by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the
district. No action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request
such item or topic be placed on a future agenda.

Trustee Lufrano stated that she had a member of the public ask her a question regarding all
along the trail, the exercise trail, all the houses back to the open land and would like to know
if the district take care of any of the debris behind those fences, flat land, maybe a ditch and
trial so does the district have a responsibility to do anything on those areas.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated that is our land I don’t know whether we have a
responsibility to do anything with that land. The NDF grants did take care of that oh a while
ago when John was still the GM, they did clear that land. He can look into that.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

O



Trustee Lufrano stated so generally speaking it is not done on a regular basis just every so
often the district might go through and clean it.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated he will look into what we have done historically, he
knows the area well.

Trustee Garcia stated the ditches are part of the storm water management so those are
maintained but not the surface area.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated yes but when we are talking about that and getting
into maintained we are talking about qualitative not quantitative so maintain the flow of
water compared to what someone thinks the property should look like are two different
things.

Trustee Lufrano stated as you come around the office the ditch here by the office and a trail.
She would see that as similar to what she is asking.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated that he will see what we have done historically.

Trustee Lufrano stated that she did see the dog park, it is really pretty cool. Great job on the
summer kick off a lot of people are so thankful to have it many of them stated they didn’t
even know that this was thing which she finds fascinating.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated several neighbors stopped by to tell him the dog park is
way cool it, he stated it turned out really nice. When is the drinking fountain going to go in.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated they put a lot of work into the dog park, Steve
worked really hard on it they did great, it is really nice. They will get that done when the
weather cools off.

Secretary/Treasurer Siegman stated it turned out really nice. He noticed a kid out riding his
motorcycle on the trails the last few days, he went through the gate.

Trustee Garcia stated some neighbors mentioned to him and he had a debate with a neighbor
who has a higher ad valorem tax than Carson City and he told them that is unlikely because
Carson is incorporated, and everything is higher. He is asking if we have others ad valorem
rate (0 compare to.

Chairman Stulac stated Chris on the General Manager report when you are going through
things is there any way, we can get an update or statement on grants that we find for road
repairs. Can you include it monthly, that might be too much if so, maybe quarterly. Even
Jjust a statement that says no activity for that period or available at this time is great.

General Manager Chris Johnson stated rest assured Mr. Chairman if he finds a grant that we
are eligible for, he will let you know but yes, he can do that.

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-17-

o]



16. Adjournment

Trustee Garcia motioned to adjourn the meeting. Secretary/Treasurer Siegman seconded. Motion
carried unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 10:00P.M.

FINAL APPROVED MINUTES AS PRESENTED

Secretary/Treasurer
Russ Siegman

Minutes of the June 26, 2024, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

- 18- (gd



